
Drainage Reports 



Michael P. Leary, LTD 

10278 E. Hillery Drive                                   (480) 991-1111 
Scottsdale, Arizona  85255                             michaelpleary@cox.net 
         
Date:  November17, 2020 
To:  Joe Phillips, Project Manager 

 Meredith Tessier, Senior Planner 
From:  Mike Leary 
Subject: DC Ranch Park – shared stormwater detention basin 
 
Colleagues, I hope that you view my following comments as nothing more than an opportunity to solve a significant 
drainage problem to the City’s benefit and not an attempt to obfuscate the plans for constructing post-haste the Bell 
Road Sports Complex.  I understand the City’s objective to have the fields ready for parking the January 2022 
Barrett-Jackson auction.  However, I am concerned that the rush might overlook the opportunity to accomplish 
significantly more than just the proposed lake in DC Ranch Park. 
 
As background I was the development coordinator for the Hampton Group which acquired the adjoining 125-acre 
ASLD lease back in 2007 (and defaulted in 2009).  As part of the EPICENTER infrastructure master planning by 
the engineering firm of Coe & Van Loo, it was discovered that the existing 100-year flow through the culverts at the 
northeast corner of Bell Toad and the Pima Freeway far exceeded its capacity.  The culvert has a 100-year capacity 
between 900 and 1,000 cfs but incoming flows between 1,400 and 1,700 cfs.  In essence during a 100-year event the 
intersection and the up and downstream properties will be flooded and the City might be liable for damages as a 
result of not having rectified the problem that they have been aware of since 2008. 
 
The use of the DC Ranch Park site to mitigate the significant overage was first approved with the Epicenter Master 
Drainage Plan in 2008.  A highlighted abstract of the Executive Report is below: 
 

 



 

 

Below is a graphic from Coe & Van Loo illustrating the use of the park as a detention basin to mitigate the 

existing 100-year flooding (comments in black are mine): 
 

 
 

In December 2017 I represented another group wanting to purchase the same ASLD property and had a formal 

pre-application meeting with City department staff. The use of DC Ranch Park for a drainage basin was 

reconfirmed by Stormwater’s Ashley Couch. If the upstream flow isn’t mitigated, the existing 1,400 to 1,700 

flow will simply be conveyed through the ASLD property to the undersized Bell Road culverts with the City 

continuing to have the flooding problem to solve or not to solve.  

 

The latest timeline from ASLD is that the north and south half of the 125-acres will be auctioned the first and 

second quarter of 2021.  For a second time I am the development coordinator for the applicant on the south 

parcel and part of our the diligence is to confirm again that the DC Ranch Park is available for detention as 

previously approved. 

 



The point of my letter is to make decision-makers aware that the plan below to construct a first phase lake does 

not address how the lake and other park improvements work with the long-planned and needed detention basin.  

 

 
 

If the park is developed without consideration of the detention basin, the lake/waterlines/site improvements may 

need to be relocated or reconstructed which would be unnecessary, avoidable and costly.  Detention basins for 

park facilities have been a common and successful dual-use throughout the City. In this case, there might also 

be another opportunity for a nominal amount of event parking for the January events. 

 

There may be a similar opportunity for dual-use of the Bell Road Fields to absorb some of the flow from 

the existing wash on the east side thereby reducing the flows into Westworld.   

 

In summary there are multiple benefits to be considered.  The City still gets its lake for the Bell Sports 

Complex.  The City eliminates the existing flooding hazard and liability at the Bell/101 culverts.  DC Ranch 

gets greater and earlier park improvements. The Jauary seasonal parking might get to use some portion of the 

14-acre park site. All of these benefits could be achieved less expensively if coordinated and not disjointed. 

 

So thems my thoughts. I’m copying quite a few folks so that everyone has the same information.  Hope this 

helps.  ML 

 

Cc:   City Councilmembers 

Jim Thompson, City Manager 

Bill Murphy, Assistant. City Manager 

 Kroy Ekblaw, Special Projects 

Dan  Worth, Executive Director 

 Ashley Couch, Drainage/Flood Control Manager 

 Rich Anderson, Stormwater Engineering Manager 

Randy Grant, Planning and Development Director 

 Tim Curtis, Current Planning Manager 
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